
 

 

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by Community 

Services Bureau to a majority of members of the Head Start Policy Council less than 72 hours prior to that meeting are available 

for public inspection at: 3068 Grant St. Bldg. 8, Concord, CA 94520 during normal business hours. (Gov. Code, section 54957.5(b) 

(2)). 

Agenda  
 

Group/Meeting Name:    CSB Policy Council Meeting 

Date: May 19, 2021 Time:  6:00-8:00 PM 

Zoom Meeting ID: 82911447514  Password: 303022 

Meeting Leader:  Jasmine Cisneros 

Purpose:  Conduct Regular Monthly Meeting 
The Community Services Bureau of Contra Costa County will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with 

disabilities planning to participate in Policy Council meetings or subcommittee meetings. 

Please contact Rita Loza at least 48 hours before the meeting at (925) 864-0837 or at aaraujo@ehsd.cccounty.us or you 

may contact the Federal Information Relay Service at 1-800-877-8339 for Teletypewriter communication assistance. 

 

Opportunities for Public Comment: Persons who wish to address the CSB Policy Council during public comment or with 

respect to an agenda item may email their comments to aaraujo@ehsd.cccounty.us before or during the meeting, or 

should join the teleconference meeting prior to the meeting to state their intent to provide public comments and will be 

limited to two minutes comment. 

All votes taken during a teleconference will be by roll call.  

 

Desired Outcome: By the end of this meeting, we will have: 

Agreement on desired outcomes and ground rules so that our meeting is productive. 

Parent Recognition of Staff Excellence Award presentation to validate employee dedication and 

uniqueness while working with children and families. 

An icebreaker to open communication and build connection among Policy Council members. 

An understanding of the monthly updates and approvals to ensure ongoing communication and 

necessary actions take place for seamless program operation. 

An understanding of subcommittee updates so that representatives are informed of subcommittee 

discussions and outcomes. 

An Approval of Community Services Bureau Director. 

An approval of the April 21, 2021 Policy Council Minutes. 

An understanding of the Mid-Year DRDP Outcomes Reports and School Readiness Goals updates so 

that ǁe are aǁare of the children’s educational progress. 
A presentation on Transition to Kindergarten, so that parents receive information about the social-

emotional aspect of this process and are aware of what steps they can take to ensure this important 

transition is a smooth one. 

An understanding of Site Reports so that we may celebrate our children, families, and staff                 

co-partnering efforts to build partnerships and community. 

An understanding of announcements so that we may be informed of Bureau news and/or available 

community resources.  

A Meeting Evaluation so that we may review our strengths and make any improvements as needed. 

 

Agenda 

What 

(Content) 

How 

(Process) 
Who 

Time 

(Minutes) 

Review Desired Outcomes  

Present 

Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Matthew Carlson  2 Minutes 

Meeting Ground Rules                     Present Matthew Carlson 3 Minute 

mailto:aaraujo@ehsd.cccounty.us
mailto:aaraujo@ehsd.cccounty.us


 

 

Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Public Comment Present Public 2 Minute 

Correspondence 
Present 

Clarify 
Karen Medrano 1 Minute 

Parent Recognition of Staff 

Excellence Award recognition 

Present 

Clarify 
Jasmine Cisneros 5 Minutes 

Ice Breaker Present 

Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Jasmine Cisneros 10 Minutes 

Administrative Reports: 

 CSB Interim Director 

 Interim Division Manager 

 Fiscal 

Present 

Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Katharine Mason 

Amy Wells 

Sarah Reich  

 20 Minutes 

Report: 

 Subcommittee Updates 

Present 

Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Subcommittee Leads 5 Minutes 

Action: 

 Consider approval of 

Community Services Bureau 

Director 

Present 

Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Check for Agreement 

Kathy Gallagher 20 Minutes 

Action: 

 Consider approval of April 

21, 2021 Policy Council 

Minutes 

Present 

Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Check for Agreement 

Carmina Hernandez 3 Minutes 

Report: 

 Mid-Year DRDP Report & 

School Readiness Goals 

Present 

Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Ron Pipa 

Afi Fiaxe 

Jennifer Kirby 

20 Minutes 

Training: 

 Kindergarten Transition 

Present 

Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Afi Fiaxe 

Jennifer Kirby 
20 Minutes 

Site Reports 

Present 

Clarify 

Check for Understanding 

Site Representatives 5 Minutes 

Announcements 

Present 

Clarify 

Check for Understanding 

Ana Araujo 3 Minutes 

Meeting Evaluation Plus/Delta Volunteer 1 Minute 

 



PC Teleconference Ground Rules  CSB April 2020 

Video Conference Meeting – Ground Rules 

 
1. Join Meeting on time - Set alarm reminders to call in five minutes before starting the meeting. 

We need to meet quorum (9 Representatives) before 6:00 PM 

2. Be prepared  

 Review documents ahead and be ready to participate as required.  

 Familiarize yourself with your phone settings, mute/unmute buttons. 

 Choose a quiet location to connect to the call.  

3. When logging-in, state your name first- This will help us identify who is calling and add you to 

the participant's role. ;e.g., Hi this "XXX Representatiǀe” calling for "XXX Center"Ϳ. 
 

4. Limit background noise - Mute/Unmute your phone accordingly throughout your participation.  

5. Speak one at a time, slowly and clearly – Speaker will ask for questions after their 

presentations.  Introduce yourself and briefly state your comment or question. 

6.  Voting on Action items - As you sign in- the Parliamentarian will create a participant's role.  

 Before approving agenda items, a CSB Staff supporting the PC Chair will ask to hear your 

vote by requesting you to say "Yes," "No" or "Abstain." 

 The Parliamentarian will take a role to listen to your vote. When you hear your name, 

unmute the phone and respond, "Yes," "No" or "Abstain." 

 Do not leave the call or put your phone on hold, if you are called, and no response is 

heard, you will be considered "absent."  

 To determine vote decision, a CSB Staff supporting the PC Chair will summarize the vote 

count:  

o  A YES (list names of members voting aye)  

o NOES (list names of members voting no) 

o ABSTAIN (list names of members who abstained) 

o ABSENT (list names of members absent)  

 The chair will announce the proposed decision by stating(Samples): 

o "The motion passes 3-2, with Smith and Jones dissenting. Item X is  

approved."  

o Or, "The motion passes 4-0, with Smith abstaining. Item X is approved."  

o Or, "The motion fails 3-2, with Smith, Jones, and Black voting against. Item  X is  

not approved."  

 

7. Avoid multi-tasking - It's easy to get distracted during a conference call. Our agenda items 

require your full attention. 

 

  



Director’s Report 

Policy Council  

May 19, 2021 

 

 

 

1. New  Director and Fiscal Officer: Please see your packet  for inform at ion 

about  the recom m ended new Director;  we will ask for your approval of his 

appointm ent  at  the m eet ing. I nterviews for Fiscal Officer are in process. 

 

2. County Adm inist rator Office ( CAO)  Analyst  visits Bayo Vista !  On 

Thursday May 13, Monica Carlisle, new CAO Analyst  assigned to CSB, visited 

our Rodeo childcare center. The purpose of this visit  was to or ient  and 

fam iliarize Ms Carlisle with CSB’s Head Start  & Early Head Start  program s, 

staffing m odels, parent  engagem ent  and Head Start  governance. 

 

3. Am erican Rescue Plan Head Start  one- t im e relief funds applicat ion is in 

process. We ant icipate receiving $2,302,066. I f awarded these funds will be 

allocated to our federal childcare partners and Delegate agency in accordance 

with their slots.  

4. CSB has officially requested pre-approval for the Central Kitchen 

relocat ion and renovat ion project  from  the Regional Office of Head Start  

via the federal 1303 applicat ion process. This project  can com m ence once 

Head Start  approval is obtained.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Enrollment and Attendance Report to Policy Council 

April 2021 
Enrollment: 

• HS – 62.10%  

• EHS –90.03% 

• EHS-CCP2 –75.0% 

 

Attendance: 

• HS – 79.06%  

• EHS – 85.13% 

• EHS-CCP2 – 82.82%  

 

Low enrollment and attendance numbers due to Covid-19 concerns & class size restrictions. 

Enrollment reflects both in-class and distance learners.  Attendance reflects ONLY in-class children. 

Informe de Inscripción y Asistencia al Consejo de Políticas  

Abril 2021 
Inscripción: 

• HS – 62.10%  

• EHS –90.03% 

• EHS-CCP2 –75.0% 

 

Asistencia:  

• HS – 79.06%  

• EHS – 85.13% 

• EHS-CCP2 – 82.82% 

 

Bajos números de inscripción y asistencia debido a preocupaciones de Covid-19 y restricciones de 

tamaño de clase. 

La inscripción refleja tanto a los alumnos que están en clase como a distancia. La asistencia refleja 

SOLAMENTE a los niños que están en clase. 



MARCH Total Remaining 25%

DESCRIPTION YTD Actual Budget Budget %YTD

a.  PERSONNEL 986,754$       4,147,590$    3,160,836$    24%

b.  FRINGE BENEFITS 658,641         2,834,447      2,175,806      23%

c. TRAVEL -                 22,060           22,060           0%

d. EQUIPMENT -                 30,000           30,000           0%

e.  SUPPLIES 19,183           213,000         193,817         9%

f.  CONTRACTUAL 565,282         4,027,919      3,462,637      14%

g.  CONSTRUCTION -                 -                 -                 0%

h.  OTHER 179,716         5,545,028      5,365,312      3%

I.  TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES 2,409,576$    16,820,044$  14,410,468$  14%

j.  INDIRECT COSTS  -                 788,042         788,042         0%

k. TOTAL-ALL BUDGET CATEGORIES 2,409,576$    17,608,086$  15,198,510$  14%

In-Kind (Non-Federal Share) 602,394$       4,402,022$   3,799,627$   14%

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY - COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU

2021 HEAD START PROGRAM

BUDGET PERIOD JANUARY - DECEMBER 2021

AS OF MARCH 2021



MARCH Total Remaining 25%

DESCRIPTION YTD Actual Budget Budget %YTD

a.  PERSONNEL 113,253$       479,714$       366,461$       24%

b.  FRINGE BENEFITS 77,393           295,675         218,282         26%

c. TRAVEL -                 2,000             2,000             0%

d. EQUIPMENT -                 -                 -                 0%

e.  SUPPLIES 6,102             17,100           10,998           36%

f.  CONTRACTUAL 292,528         1,877,348      1,584,821      16%

g.  CONSTRUCTION -                 -                 -                 0%

h.  OTHER 5,514             1,114,151      1,108,637      0%

I.  TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES 494,790$       3,785,988$    3,291,198$    13%

j.  INDIRECT COSTS  -                 91,146           91,146           0%

k. TOTAL-ALL BUDGET CATEGORIES 494,790$       3,877,134$    3,382,344$    13%

In-Kind (Non-Federal Share) 123,697$       969,284$       845,586$       13%

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY - COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU

2021 EARLY HEAD START PROGRAM

BUDGET PERIOD JANUARY - DECEMBER 2021

AS OF MARCH 2021



DESCRIPTION Original Remaining 50%

MARCH Budget Budget Budget

YTD Actual  Sep 20-Aug 21 Mar-Aug 21 % YTD

a.  PERSONNEL 636,840           1,044,684        407,844        61%

b.  FRINGE BENEFITS 402,589           676,672           274,083        59%

c. TRAVEL -                       7,000               7,000            0%

d. EQUIPMENT -                       -                       -                    0%

e.  SUPPLIES 17,644             27,000             9,356            65%

f.  CONTRACTUAL 424,685           1,181,455        756,770        36%

g.  CONSTRUCTION -                       -                       -                    0%

h.  OTHER 704,831           1,918,123        1,213,292     37%

I.  TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES 2,186,588        4,854,934        2,668,346     45%

j.  INDIRECT COSTS  130,539           175,440           44,901          74%

k. TOTAL-ALL BUDGET CATEGORIES 2,317,127        5,030,374        2,713,247     46%

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY - EHSD COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU

EARLY HEAD START - CHILDCARE PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM

BUDGET PERIOD: SEPTEMBER 01, 2020 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2021

AS OF MARCH 2021

Note: Administration for Children and Families (ACF) approved the non-federal share waiver request for this budget year [Head Start 
Act Section 640.(b)(4)]. The non-federal share requirement is now $0 at 0%.



 COMMUNITY SERVICES BUREAU 
 SUMMARY CREDIT CARD EXPENDITURE 

March 2021

Stat. Date Amount Program Purpose/Description

03/22/21 78.60                          GM III Site Costs Office Exp

03/22/21 (39.30) GM III Site Costs Office Exp

03/22/21 54.11                          Los Nogales Site Costs Office Exp

03/22/21 (39.30) GM III Site Costs Office Exp

54.11                          

03/22/21 273.94 Head Start T & TA Books, Periodicals

03/22/21 309.88 HS CARES COVID-19 Books, Periodicals

03/22/21 493.17 EHS-Child Care Partnership #2 Books, Periodicals

03/22/21 1,479.49 EHS Basis Grant Books, Periodicals

03/22/21 373.31                        EHS-Child Care Partnership #2 Books, Periodicals

03/22/21 121.04                        EHS Basis Grant Books, Periodicals

03/22/21 51.87                          HS CARES COVID-19 Books, Periodicals

03/22/21 946.39                        EHS Basis Grant Books, Periodicals

03/22/21 405.59                        HS CARES COVID-19 Books, Periodicals

03/22/21 517.65                        HS Basic Grant Books, Periodicals

4,972.33                     

03/22/21 55.44                          Child Dev Misc Grants: QRIS Minor Furniture/Equipment

03/22/21 3,341.40                     HS CARES COVID-19 Minor Furniture/Equipment

03/22/21 38.03                          Comm. Svc Block Grant Minor Furniture/Equipment

03/22/21 38.03                          Indirect Admin Costs Minor Furniture/Equipment

03/22/21 391.90                        Indirect Admin Costs Minor Furniture/Equipment

03/22/21 29.24                          Facilities Minor Furniture/Equipment

3,894.04                     

03/22/21 347.10                        Child Nutrition Food Services Food

347.10                        

03/22/21 533.50                        HS CARES COVID-19 Clothing & Personal Suppl

533.50                        

03/22/21 54.60                          Child Nutrition Food Services Household Expense

54.60                          

03/22/21 275.00                        EHS-Child Care Partnership #2 Memberships

03/22/21 975.00                        HS Basic Grant Memberships

03/22/21 462.50                        HS Basic Grant Memberships

03/22/21 462.50                        EHS-Child Care Partnership #2 Memberships

03/22/21 495.00                        EHS-Child Care Partnership #2 Memberships

03/22/21 462.50                        HS Basic Grant Memberships

03/22/21 462.50                        EHS-Child Care Partnership #2 Memberships

3,595.00                     

03/22/21 125.00                        HS Basic Grant Training & Registration



03/22/21 793.00                        Head Start T & TA Training & Registration

918.00                        

03/22/21 (195.60) EHS Basis Grant Educational Supplies

03/22/21 (19.56) EHS Basis Grant Educational Supplies

03/22/21 (117.36) EHS Basis Grant Educational Supplies

03/22/21 260.80 HS Basic Grant Educational Supplies

03/22/21 197.21                        HS CARES COVID-19 Educational Supplies

03/22/21 97.80                          HS Basic Grant Educational Supplies

223.29                        

Total 14,591.97            



Claim Reimbursement

Total: 28,074$  

EHSD/CSB 

CHILD NUTRITION FOOD SERVICES 

CHILD and ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM MEALS SERVED - FY 2020-21

March 2021

11,739 Meals Served

Breakfast, 

3,772

Lunch, 

4,688

Supplements, 

3,279

13 Approved Sites

204 Daily Participation

23 Days Meals Served



Recommendation for Approval of Hire of Director for the Community 

Services Bureau Pending Policy Council and Board of Supervisors 

Approval* 

 

On March 17, 2021, interviews were conducted to fill the vacant position of 

Community Services Bureau Director.  A panel that included the Director of the 

Employment and Human Services Department, the Director of the Children and 

Family Services Bureau, and a former Director of a county Community Action 

Agency unanimously selected Aaron Alarcon-Bowen for the position.  The 

following attributes contributed to this selection: 

 

 Over 20 years of experience in public service 

 Current experience as an executive director, including supervision of staff, 

fiscal management and administration, in accordance with the 

requirements of HSPPS 1302.91(b) for a Head Start Director 

 Experience in leadership positions working with children, families, the 

elderly and the mentally incapacitated 

 Strong commitment to addressing issues of poverty  

 Highly effective in building coalitions and strong networks of community 

partners 

 Experience in working with boards, commissions and councils 

 Is bicultural and bilingual 

 Education: Bachelor’s Degree in Organizational Coŵŵunication; Master’s 
Degree in Public Administration; nearing completion of a PhD in Public 

Policy and Administration 

 

 

 

*As per Head Start Act of 2007, Section 642(c)(1)(E)(1X) and as requested by the Administration 

of Children and Families, Region IX. 



 

PC Minutes 4/21/2021      Page 1 of 9 

                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                   

 

Policy Council Meeting Minutes 

Virtual Meeting 

 

Date: 4/21/2021 Time Convened:  6:01 PM Time Terminated: 8:08 PM Recorder: Imelda Prieto Martinez 

 

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

Review Desired 

Outcomes  

and Meeting Rules 

Jasmine Cisneros, Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm.   

Matthew Carlson, Vice-Chair, reviewed the desired outcomes and meeting ground rules. 

Public Comment Lauren Babb, Economic Opportunity Council, Private/Non-Profit Seat No. 3, addressed the participants in attendance in a Public Hearing 

to gather input to identify high priority needs of low-income and under-served populations in Contra Costa County.  

Correspondence None 

Staff Recognition The following staff was recognized for going above and beyond in their work with the children and the families:  

 Bangone Soomboonsab, I/T Teacher at George Miller Concord, and Manjeet Kaur, I/T Teacher at Los Arboles, were presented 

with a certificate and a book to acknowledge their dedication to the children and families. 

Ice Breaker Policy Council Representatives participated in an icebreaker activity to open communication and build connections among members. 

They were prompted to share, "What healthy lunch/dinner recipes have you tried out with your family?"  

Administrative 

Reports 

 CSB Interim 

Director 

 Interim Division 

Manager 

 Fiscal 

Katharine Mason, CSB Interim Director, welcomed Policy Council representatives and thanked them for attending.   

Administrative updates:   

 Interviews for CSB Director are completed, and the final selection is still in process. Interviews for Fiscal Officer are tentatively 

scheduled for early May. 

 CSB completed the State Contract Monitoring Review (CMR) and Error Rate Review (ERR) of Stage 2, Alternative Payment, CCTR 

(ages 0-3), and CSPP (preschool) programs. There was a 0% error rate and No Findings of Noncompliance! This is a rare and 

significant accomplishment!  

o The reviewers were especially impressed with: our well-organized family files, having one "comprehensive and reliable" 

system for accounting, record-keeping, and reporting (CLOUDS), as well as staff's strong knowledge of the system, our 

attendance and eligibility determination systems, and our adaptions to services for and communication methods with 

families and children during the pandemic. They made a point to thank us for the "warm welcome" from our staff and 

an "easy" review process. 

 Our Board of Supervisors signed on to a Letter of Concern spearheaded by the California Head Start Association around 

Assembly Bill 22 (McCarty), a bill to expand Transitional Kindergarten (TK). The main concerns are that this bill does not address 

what at-risk children need or what working parents need. 



 

PC Minutes 4/21/2021      Page 2 of 9 

                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                   

Amy Wells, Interim Division Manager, provided enrollment and attendance statistics for the month of March as follows: 

 The month's enrollment was 60.85% for Head Start, 89.07% for Early Head Start, and 75.0% for Early Head Start Child Care 

Partnership #2.   

 The month's attendance was 79.61% for Head Start, 84.12% for Early Head Start, and 84.63% for Early Head Start Child Care 

Partnership #2.  

Program updates: 

 Classroom Operations 

o County tier system update-Orange tier effective April 7th; Gradual increases to in-class capacity beginning this week (4I, 

6T, 10PS, 12HS only) 

o Modified some practices to be less restrictive, such as criteria to close, etc.; no changes will impact the health and 

safety of staff and/or families 

o Masks-two and up; please continue to talk with your child about this requirement. 

 CSB Connect! Creators have released this interactive website to CSB's Business Systems staff on Monday! This week test runs 

were completed to ensure everything works as it should. It should be available soon!  

 Grow Our Own - In collaboration with Diablo Valley College, CSB hosted an informational session for all teaching staff who may 

be interested in advancing their career with an Associate Teacher permit. The session supported potential participants with 

how to enroll in fall classes, how the program will look, and tuition and academic support available. Los Medanos College (LMC) 

is offering staff who meet qualifications the opportunity to participate in a BA program through Brandman University starting in 

2022. Lots of upcoming opportunities for staff to advance their education.   

 This week is the 50th anniversary of the Week of the Young Child. Many activities for the children are planned, including 

parades, picnics, dress-up activities, singing and dancing, outdoor chalk and painting, and more. This year is a little different due 

to the pandemic, and we hope the next celebration can include families as we have done in the past. Please check out our 

social media page for lots of great pictures that showcase the fun the classrooms and children had.   

Sarah Reich, ASAIII, and Nivette Moore-Abalo, Fiscal Subcommittee member, presented the following financial reports on behalf of 

Haydee Ilan:  

 2020-2021 Head Start Program: February 2021 year-to-date cash expenditures were $1,207,751 YTD, representing 7% of the 

program budget. 

 2020-2021 Early Head Start Program: February 2021 year-to-date cash expenditures were $233,963 YTD, representing 6% of 

the program budget. 

 2020-2021 Early Head Start – CC Partnership: February 2021 year-to-date cash expenditures were $2,054,587 YTD, 

representing 41% of the program budget.  

 Credit Card expenditures for all programs, including Head Start and Early Head Start, for the month of February 2021 were 

$5,491.23. 

 Child and Adult Care Food Program: February 2021, total meals served, including breakfast, lunch, and supplements, were 

8,950. 



 

PC Minutes 4/21/2021      Page 3 of 9 

                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                   

Subcommittee 

Updates 

Fiscal: Nivette Moore-Abalo presented the Fiscal reports to the Policy Council during the Administrative reports.  

Program Services: No updates were reported. 

Action: 

Consider approval 

of 1.22% Cost of 

Living Adjustment 

for Head Start  

Sarah Reich, ASAIII, provided an overview of the 1.22% Cost of Living Adjustment for Head Start.  

 

 CSB Head 

Start 

Delegate Agency First 

Baptist Head Start 

 

Total 

1.22% COLA $184,523 $27,888 $212,411 

Non-Federal Match $ -0- $ -0- $  -0- 

TOTAL $184,523 $27,888 $212,411 

A motion to approve the 1.22% Cost of Living Adjustment for Head Start was made by Matthew Carlson and seconded by Delia 

Zarges. The motion passed. 

Ayes Nays Abstentions Not Present 

Joel Nickelson-Shanks Jason Streffery   Deniedre Henry 

Delia Zarges Denae Johnson   Folakemo Omole 

Dana Von Austin Carmina Hernandez   Melrease Epperson 

Kara Simmons Melanie Graves   Jamyisha Portis (disconnected from the roll call) 

Karen Medrano Devlyn Sewell   Matthew Carlson (disconnected from the roll call) 

Myriah Herrington Deanna Carmona    

Desirae Jordan Nivette Moore-Abalo    

Maria Palestino     

Maria Chavez     
 

Action: 

Consider approval 

of 1.22% Cost of 

Living Adjustment 

for Early Head Start  

Sarah Reich, ASAIII, provided an overview of the 1.22% Cost of Living Adjustment for Early Head Start.  

 

 Early Head Start 

1.22% COLA $46,289 

Non-Federal Match $ -0- 

TOTAL $46,289 

A motion to approve the 1.22% Cost of Living Adjustment for Early Head Start was made by Matthew Carlson and seconded by 

Melanie Graves. The motion passed. 

Ayes Nays Abstentions Not Present 

Jamyisha Portis Maria Palestino   Deniedre Henry  

Joel Nickelson-Shanks Maria Chavez   Folakemo Omole  

Delia Zarges Jason Streffery   Melrease Epperson  

Dana Von Austin Denae Johnson     

Matthew Carlson Carmina Hernandez     

Kara Simmons Melanie Graves     



 

PC Minutes 4/21/2021      Page 4 of 9 

                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                   

Karen Medrano Devlyn Sewell     

Myriah Herrington Deanna Carmona     

Desirae Jordan Nivette Moore-Abalo     
 

Action: 

Consider approval 

of 1.22% Cost of 

Living Adjustment 

for Early Head Start 

Child Care 

Partnership  

Sarah Reich, ASAIII, provided an overview of the 1.22% Cost of Living Adjustment for Early Head Start Child Care Partnership.  

 

 Early Head Start 

1.22% COLA $20,000 

Non-Federal Match $ -0- 

TOTAL $20,000 

A motion to approve the 1.22% Cost of Living Adjustment for Early Head Start Child Care Partnership was made by Matthew Carlson 

and seconded by Melanie Graves. The motion passed. 

Ayes Nays Abstentions Not Present 

Jamyisha Portis Maria Palestino   Deniedre Henry  

Joel Nickelson-Shanks Maria Chavez   Folakemo Omole  

Delia Zarges Jason Streffery   Melrease Epperson  

Dana Von Austin Denae Johnson     

Matthew Carlson Carmina Hernandez     

Kara Simmons Melanie Graves     

Karen Medrano Devlyn Sewell     

Myriah Herrington Deanna Carmona     

Desirae Jordan Nivette Moore-Abalo     
 

Action: 

Consider approval 

of 2021 Early Head 

Start Child Care 

Partnership Grant 

Extension 

Sarah Reich, ASAIII, provided an overview of the 2021 Early Head Start Child Care Partnership Grant Extension.  

Description Amount 

a. Personnel $321,701 

b. Fringe Benefits $208,678 

c. Travel - 

d. Equipment - 

e. Supplies $4,000 

f. Contractual $346,200 

g. Construction - 

h. Other $215,776 

i. Indirect Costs $61,123 

j. Total Direct Charges $1,157,478 

A motion to approve the Early Head Start Child Care Partnership Grant Extension was made by Matthew Carlson and seconded by 

Joel Nickelson-Shanks. The motion passed. 

Ayes Nays Abstentions Not Present 



 

PC Minutes 4/21/2021      Page 5 of 9 

                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                   

Jamyisha Portis Maria Palestino   Deniedre Henry 

Joel Nickelson-Shanks Maria Chavez   Folakemo Omole 

Delia Zarges Jason Streffery   Melrease Epperson  

Dana Von Austin Denae Johnson   Nivette Moore-Abalo (disconnected from the roll call) 

Matthew Carlson Carmina Hernandez    

Kara Simmons Melanie Graves    

Karen Medrano Devlyn Sewell    

Myriah Herrington Deanna Carmona    

Desirae Jordan     
 

Action: 

Consider Approval 

of March 17th, 

2021, Policy Council 

Minutes 

The minutes of the March 17th, 2021, Policy Council meeting were reviewed and no corrections were noted. 

A motion to approve the minutes from the March 17th, 2021, Policy Council meetings was made by Matthew Carlson and seconded 

by Jamyisha Portis. The motion passed.  

Ayes Nays Abstentions Not Present 

Jamyisha Portis Maria Palestino   Deniedre Henry 

Joel Nickelson-Shanks Maria Chavez   Folakemo Omole 

Delia Zarges Jason Streffery   Melrease Epperson 

Dana Von Austin Denae Johnson   Devlyn Sewell (disconnected from the roll call) 

Matthew Carlson Carmina Hernandez   Nivette Moore-Abalo (disconnected from the roll call) 

Kara Simmons Melanie Graves    

Karen Medrano Deanna Carmona    

Myriah Herrington     

Desirae Jordan     
 

Training:  

Child Abuse 

Prevention and 

Parental Resiliency  

Stephanie Kraus and Sally Lowder, Mental Health Program Managers, provided an overview of Parental Resiliency and its relation to 

Child Abuse Prevention. Parenting is the most important and challenging job, and no one is perfect. Understanding how our little ones 

cope with stress is a lifelong process, and getting help with early intervention through Head Start significantly helps parents with being 

resilient.     

 

What do we mean by the word Resiliency? 

Resiliency is the ability to adapt to new challenges, manage stress, and recover when faced with adversity. How can we help families 

learn the necessary skills to better cope with stress for themselves and their children? Resiliency is not an inborn trait, and it’s a skill 
that is cultivated with time. We learn to recognize the signs of stress and implement self-care to cultivate resiliency for ourselves as 

caregivers and recognize when our children are showing signs of stress.  

 

Recognizing Stress & Stress Relationship to Self-Care – What does Stress look like for you? 

 Feeling angry, Irritable, & Sad often 



 

PC Minutes 4/21/2021      Page 6 of 9 

                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                   

 Feeling Hopeless 

 Difficulty making decisions 

 Cry Easily & Worry often 

 Arguing with Friends & Partner 

 Overeating on Not Eating Enough 

 Unable to Sleep of Increased Sleeping 

 Hurting yourself, others, animals, or damaging objects 

 Decreased Interest & Interaction with others 

When thinking about this for ourselves, a helpful tool can be to take a moment to reflect where in your body you tend to feel stress. 

Ongoing stress can contribute to health problems such as allergies, irritable bowel syndrome (IBS), increased blood pressure, neck pain, 

tension headaches, etc. These are clear signs that your body is telling you that your cortisol hormone is high and that you need to 

engage in self-care. 

 

Approaches to Stress Reduction – Increase Regulation & Decreased Reactivity 

 Eating healthy and be physically active 

 Spend time with a supportive friend or loved one 

 Reach out to a mental health professional 

 Reduce the amount of news that you're watching 

 Taking walks 

 Find ways to relax that don't compromise your health 

Increased self and other awareness help reduce stress and feel better about managing overwhelming feelings throughout the day.  

 

The benefits of a healthy lifestyle are as follows 

 Increase the likelihood one will reach out to someone for help with overwhelming thoughts and unhelpful habits 

 Increase one's patience with their child and decreased fears related to parenting, and improves their creativity and empathy 

 Social engagement and the ability to collaborate begin to reduce stress, depression, anxiety, and it can improve our emotional 

intelligence 

 

Concerning Behaviors in Young Children - What is Concerning Behavior? 

 Aggressive toward self or others 

 Verbally &/or Physically harming others 

 Withdrawing physically &/or verbally from others 

 Distressing (for both child & caregiver) 

 Negatively impacts their ability to function effectively in the environment 

(Home, school, or community) 

What are children expressing through their behaviors? 

 Learning by trying & testing 



 

PC Minutes 4/21/2021      Page 7 of 9 

                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                   

 Learning to communicate verbally like adults & use emotion regulation 

 Exploring the environment & the limits of their relationships 

 Using behavior to express needs, wants, & feelings 

 Showing us that they are struggling internally  

 

How can we improve a child’s well-being & reduce the feeling that underly unwanted behaviors? 

 Building a routine and daily schedules so children know what to expect and are less anxious and resistant to engaging in 

activities anticipatory  

 Develop family rules 

What do positive teaching tools look like in practice? 

 Praise wanted behavior + modeling yourself 

 Identify feelings 

 Offer choices 

 Provide natural consequences  

 Focus on the specific behavior you want to change 

 Can you make the following rules into a game? 

 

Reach out for help, connect with teachers, extended family members, mental health professionals, or pediatricians.   

 

Increasing Well-Being & Fostering Resiliency is attainable when we feel connected to others. 

Site Reports Ambrose 

• We celebrated "Week of the Young Child" with wonderful activities all week long! 

• Ms. Valeire Nunley is retiring on April 23rd, 2021; she will be missed! We wish her a happy and restful retirement! 

• New cubbies were installed in classroom B-2. 

• We have been planting vegetable seeds at the Ambrose Community garden. 

• On March 22nd, 2021, Isabel Renggenathen visited our Center.  

• Grab-N-Go bags with family activities and new books were distributed, and diapers were donated to 3 of our families. 

Balboa 

• Children, families, and staff celebrate Week of the Young Child with many activities such as bubble dancing, crazy hat day, T-

shirt making, Sports Day, Pajama Day, and A Chalk It Up event on Family Friday. 

• All students and staff practiced new fire drill exercises.  

• Outdoor bulletin boards (so parents can see children's work on display) will feature different classroom work each week. 

• A new washer was installed for Modular B. 

• Room #2 is working on a building project.   

• In-person, students and Distance Learning students received art-collage bags to create art at home. 

Bayo Vista 



 

PC Minutes 4/21/2021      Page 8 of 9 

                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                   

• Bayo-Vista is celebrating the welcoming of Spring and Week Of The Young Child. Many fun activities have been planned for the 

children to enjoy during this time. 

• New banners promoting enrollment in our programs were installed at the front of the building. 

• Room #3 preschool classroom is working on the ball project.  

• Week of the Young Child activities will occur; each class will hold a small parade on the playground with instruments and 

banners celebrating this festive week. 

• Parents were provided with resources for dental care, Make Parenting A Pleasure tips, and Language Development guidelines 

for Young Children. 

George Miller Concord 

• "Week of the Young Child" at GMC. Teachers prepared engaging activities to celebrate the children. Some of the fun and 

engaging activities were outdoor Zumba, music parade, crazy hair and hat day, and multi-cultural day. 

• We have a new Student Intern to support our work at GMC. 

• During our Parent Meeting, we shared information about the "Itsy-Bitsy Reading Program," provided tips and facts about 

reading to their young children at home; and the "Using the Home as a Learning Environment," including tips on how to play 

together, share, wait and take turns. 

• Home activities were sent to families to support learnings from classroom to home. 

• Spring break for the part-day program was the week of April 5th. 

GMIII 

• April 12-16th was "Week of the Young Child," all GMIII classrooms enthusiastically participated by creating fun, thoughtful 

hands-on learning activities, including tie-dye T-shirt making, musical instrument making, sidewalk chalk drawing, healthy snack 

making, and making family dioramas!   

• On April 16th, GMIII hosted a dental health event called Give a Kid a Smile Day. All students participated, including those 

enrolled in distance learning. The event was a success, all CoVID19 health and safety protocols and precautions were 

implemented, and there was an attendance turnout of 30+ students.  

• GMIII hosted a virtual Movie Night for all students and their families, including "Healthy Snack Options" - a nutrition 

presentation by our registered dietician, Sophia Talbot. 

• Teachers in two of the classrooms have been doing special projects with their students about trees and the study of different 

buildings. 

• Isabel Renggenathen, Assistant Director, came for a delightful site visit to collectively check-in with the teaching staff and the 

site supervisors. 

• "Friendship Card" information was distributed to all GMIII families so that children and their parents can make a card together 

and send/share it with a loved one. 

Los Arboles  

• We celebrated the Week of the Young Child from April 12th – April 16th with many fun activities such as Multicultural Day, Art, 

Music, Pajama Day, and Carnival Day on Friday.  

• Our site received new chairs for the preschoolers. 

•  Children decorated T-shirts to take home.  

• Cecilia from Tandem shared Story Cycle resources.  



 

PC Minutes 4/21/2021      Page 9 of 9 

                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                   

 

• Ms. Manjeet Kaur will be recognized at the Policy Council this month. 

Announcements Ana Araujo, Comprehensive Services Manager for Parent, Family, and Community Engagement, provided the following announcements 

and resources (copy of resources were emailed to participants): 

• Father Talk (Supporting Fathers & Father Figures)/English Series-PUSD fathers: Wednesdays from April 14th-June 2nd 6:00-8:00 

pm Register: COPE Family Support: (925) 689-5811/First 5 Centers 

• Children and Play: How to Incorporate Positive Parenting: Tuesday, April 27th, 6:00-7:00 pm Register: COPE Family Support: 

(925) 689-5811/First 5 Centers 

• Strategies for Parenting Multiple Children: Thursday, May 13th, 6:00-7:30p Register: COPE Family Support: (925) 689-5811/First 

5 Centers 

• California COVID-19 Rent Relief Program: Call (833) 430-2122 

 The next meeting is scheduled for May 19th, 2021. 

Meeting Evaluation Pluses / + 

• Good information 

• Public Hearing was helpful 

Deltas / Δ 

 None 


